
Human Resources & Information Technology Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor6:30 PMWednesday, September 25, 2024

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

24-1224 Minutes 8/28/24.

 

Minutes 8.28.24.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

24-1101 Approval of Alderperson Salaries.

 

19-0536 - Alderperson Salary Adjustment Deadlines Update Fall 2024 (ZB & CRB) 09-06-2024.pdf.pdf

Elected Alderperson Salary History.pdf

Alderperson Comp 2024 Comparable.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

8/28/24 Human Resources & 

Information Technology 

Committee

held

7. Information Items

24-1228 Directors Report. 

 

24-1226 Military Leave Policy Update. 

 

Military Leave Policy.pdfAttachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 9/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24924
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=74579975-73d7-4271-9cfd-57067ef4d0d5.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24801
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7e25b544-36b8-425c-a194-6ede86b051af.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=70aff6bd-f6fb-4135-b809-9d95722ab5d7.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=40ee4ebc-6056-4d5a-86ab-1756187c2662.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24928
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24926
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2e0731e1-039d-4fae-9e6a-658e12029877.pdf


September 25, 2024Human Resources & Information 

Technology Committee

Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1227 Recruitment Status Report through 9/18/24.

 

RSR 09.18.24.pdfAttachments:

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

For questions on the agenda contact, Vanessa Calder 920-832-6458.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 9/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24927
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d31ac5df-017b-44f5-ad2b-a2bfd26683e0.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes

Human Resources & Information 

Technology Committee

6:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, August 28, 2024

Call meeting to order1.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Roll call of membership3.

Jones, Croatt and HartzheimPresent: 3 - 

Van Zeeland and HaydenExcused: 2 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Croatt, that the  be approved. Roll Call. Motion 

carried by the following vote:

Aye: Jones, Croatt and Hartzheim3 - 

Absent: Van Zeeland and Hayden2 - 

24-1100 Minutes 8/14/24.

Minutes 8.14.24.pdfAttachments:

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

Action Items6.

24-1102 Wastewater Treatment Plant Table of Organization Change Proposal

WW TO Change 2024.pdf

WW TO JD Update 2024.pdf

Attachments:

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Croatt, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Jones, Croatt and Hartzheim3 - 

Absent: Van Zeeland and Hayden2 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24800
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c31cd062-f88e-4b18-9d49-a9afe5b7bf80.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24802
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cbee8522-f628-4185-bf32-b44dc6d97fab.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=858d1e6c-6786-4fb5-8444-623ff2df7f94.pdf


August 28, 2024Human Resources & Information 

Technology Committee

Meeting Minutes

24-1101 Approval of Alderperson Salaries.

Alderperson Comp 2024 Attorney Ltr.pdf

Alderperson Comp 2024 Comparable.pdf

Alderperson Comp 2024 History.pdf

Attachments:

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Croatt, that the Report Action Item be held. 

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Jones, Croatt and Hartzheim3 - 

Absent: Van Zeeland and Hayden2 - 

24-1095 Generative AI Policy.

Generative AI Technology Policy S&B 2024.docxAttachments:

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Croatt, that the Presentation be recommended 

for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Jones, Croatt and Hartzheim3 - 

Absent: Van Zeeland and Hayden2 - 

Information Items7.

24-1091 Fall Protection Policy Update.

Fall Protection Policy S&B 5-16-24.docxAttachments:

24-1096 Security Badge Access Policy Update.

Security Card Access Key-Identification Badge and Visitor Security 

Policy SB 2024.doc

Attachments:

24-1097 Privacy Policy Update.

Privacy Policy Draft S&B 2024.docxAttachments:

24-1098 Workplace Violence Policy Update.

Workplace Violence S&B 2024.docxAttachments:

24-1103 Fringe Benefit Policy for Full/Part Time Update.

Fringe Benefit Policy Part-Time S&B 08.2024.pdf

Fringe Benefit Policy 2024 - draft S&B 08.2024.pdf

Attachments:

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24801
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=88a7ed23-e970-491b-b9e3-8b68d94cca1b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a8491831-45fc-4066-99d6-f504e31cd372.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=88c325e4-8d00-4313-a4c8-467988e3754d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24795
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4de3a565-4915-44db-80cc-960c9a8114a6.docx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24791
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8f55d4a9-2daf-4c5f-8204-cf515236a4c0.docx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24796
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a9002f54-13cd-4de3-b18f-7f572efa73ef.doc
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24797
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e089588d-7786-4bad-b4dd-f46ec67c52bb.docx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24798
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4170b004-566f-4356-8f72-14069dd2c8b5.docx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24803
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cc3ea11c-cf4f-47a0-9729-154d1d8129ff.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=150f8fff-5a9e-4e8e-908b-8e7b401b9654.pdf


August 28, 2024Human Resources & Information 

Technology Committee

Meeting Minutes

24-1144 COBRA Policy

COBRA Policy complete strike 8 2024.pdfAttachments:

24-1104 FMLA Policy Update.

Family Medical Leave Act S&B 08.2024.pdfAttachments:

24-1099 Recruitment Status Report through 8/22/24.

RSR 8.22.24.pdfAttachments:

Adjournment8.

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Croatt, that the  be adjourned. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Jones, Croatt and Hartzheim3 - 

Absent: Van Zeeland and Hayden2 - 

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24844
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7992f810-19d1-4c3d-a74b-10d62340fcfc.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24804
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=47c5e92e-0901-4c5c-b500-6dfe2318c55c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24799
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f9e69f21-5936-441e-85e9-df896d73e21a.pdf


CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appleton.org 
 
 

TO: Alderperson Vaya Jones, Chair 
Members of the Human Resources / Information Technology Committee 

From: Zak Buruin, Assistant City Attorney 

Date: August 1, 2024 REVISED: September 6, 2024 
 

RE: Alderperson Salary Adjustment 
City Attorney File No. A19-0536 

 
 

Alderperson salaries are reviewed annually. Historically this item is placed on the 
agenda as an action item every Fall to give Council the ability to review and adjust the 
Alderperson salary for a future Council. On November 1, 2023, the Common Council 
voted to maintain the $6,750 annual salary of all Alderpersons, effective April 2025. 

 
Wisconsin Statutes § 62.09(6)(am)2 prohibits changing Alderperson salaries after the 
“earliest time for filing nomination papers for the office” and no changes can be made in 
the compensation during “the term of office for which the deadline applies.” 

 
Therefore, Council has the following options available depending on whether it wants 
different salaries for half of the Council, or one across-the-board adjustment for a future 
Council: 

 
1) For staggered salaries: Council may establish alderpersons’ salaries for terms 
starting in April 2025 (Districts 1, 3, 5, 7, 9, 11, 13, and 15) prior to December 1, 
2024, and subsequently establish salaries for Alderpersons for terms starting in 
April 2026 (Districts 2, 4, 6, 8, 10, 12, and 14) prior to December 1, 2025: or, 

 
2) For a single adjustment: establish the salary for all alderpersons seated on the 
Council in April 2026 prior to December 1, 2024. 

 

As a reminder, changes to the salary amount require a majority vote at the committee level 
but will ultimately require approval by three-fourths of all members of the council for final 
approval as required by Wisconsin Statutes Sec. 62.09(6)(a). 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to get in touch. 



 

J:\SALARY SCHEDULES\Elected\Elected Alderperson Salary History.docx 

 

ELECTED ALDERPERSON SALARIES (revised copy 9/6/2024) 
 

Council 
Date 

Election 
Year 

Salary Benefits Notes 

9-17-2014 2016 $5921 Parking pass Addition of parking 
pass and wage 2% 
increase 

11-18-2015 2017 $5980 Parking pass 1% increase. *See note 
below 

10-19-2016 2018 $6129.50 Parking pass 2.5% increase 
10-18-2017 2019 No increase Parking pass  
11-7-2018 2020 No increase Parking pass  
11-6-2019 2021 $6221.44 Parking pass 1.5% increase 
n/a (year 
2020) 

2022 $6221.44 Parking pass HR did not get on 
committee agenda 
timely.  No change to 
wage. 

9-15-2021 2023 $6750  Parking pass  
11-16-2022 2024 $6750 (no 

increase) 
Parking pass HR committee special 

session 11/16/2022 
11-15-2023 2025 $6750 (no 

increase) 
Parking pass  

 
*An error from 2017 was discovered in August 2024.The Council approved no increase on 11/18/2015 for election year 
2017; however, a 1% adjustment was provided, bumping the salary to $5980. 

 



Municipality Population # of Council/Board Salary Benefits Expense Account

Appleton 74,370 15 $6,750 Parking pass, EAP None

EauClaire 70,587 11 $3000; President = 
$3600

$10/mo cell phone allow, 
$88.43 auto allow

None

Green Bay 107,015 12 $10,287 Health, Dental, Deffered 
Comp

None

Kenosha 99,877 17 $6,000 None $50 per diem per 1/2 day; $100 per diem 
per 6 hour day; $50 per meeting; $100 
per month expense allowance; $130 per 
month technology stipend

La Crosse 51,834 13 $8,400.00 WRS, ICI, Section 125 Yes

Manitowoc 34,547 10 $5,400.00 City issued iPad, which is 
kept upon conclusion of 
term

None

Neenah 26,137 9 $5,280 None None

Menasha 17,856 8 President $5808; 
others $5508

None

None

Oshkosh 66,607 7 $5,000.06 None

Sheboygan 48,329 10 $6,084 None None

Wausau 39,994 11 $5,354.96 None None

West Bend 32,000 9 $4,236.00 None $30/month

De Pere

25,525

8 $7792 (2024-2025)  
$7948 (2025-2026) EAP

None

Grand Chute 23,964 5

Chairman = 
$20,500; Board 
Supervisors = 
$10,812 None None

Fond du Lac 44,678 7
President - $6,000; 
others $5,000 None None

Alderpersons 2024



Page 1 of 9 

 

Military Leave 

CITY OF APPLETON POLICY SECTION: Human Resources 

ISSUE DATE: September 2003 LAST UPDATE:  August 2024 

POLICY SOURCE: Human Resources Department 

POLICY 
AUDIENCE: 

All employees serving in the military forces of the United 
States of America and all employee who are members of the 
Wisconsin Civil Air Patrol 

 
I. PURPOSE 

To outline for employees who are members of the military forces of the United States of America, 
either on active duty, in the Reserves or members of the National Guard, their responsibilities and 
rights as City of Appleton employees, as well as the procedures for compliance with the Uniformed 
Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA). 
 
This policy also outlines the rights and responsibilities of employees who are members of the Wisconsin 
Civil Air Patrol. 
 

II. POLICY 
It is the policy of the City of Appleton to allow military leave to all employees who temporarily leave the 
service of the City to join the military forces of the United States. Such leave will be without pay for all 
regular part-time, seasonal, temporary and grant-funded non-represented employees. Regular full-time 
employees shall be granted a leave of absence from their position without loss of pay for a period not 
to exceed two consecutive calendar weeks in any calendar year. The City will pay such an employee for 
time lost in the amount equaling the difference between the military pay and their normal City pay. 
 
The City of Appleton will allow Wisconsin Civil Air Patrol members unpaid leave for up to five 
consecutive days per incident, not to exceed a total of 15 days of leave in a year. 
 
NOTE: For exigency leave please refer to the City of Appleton FMLA policy. 

 
III. DEFINITIONS 

A. Escalator position. This is established by the principle that the returning Service member is entitled 
to the position of civilian employment that the Service member would have attained had the 
Service member remained continuously employed by that civilian employer. This may be a position 
of greater or lesser responsibilities, to include a layoff status, when compared to the employees of 
the same seniority and status employed by the company. 

 
B. Impossible or unreasonable. For the purpose of determining when providing advance notice of 

uniformed service to an employer is impossible or unreasonable, the unavailability of an employer 
or employer representative to whom notification can be given, an order by competent military 
authority to report for uniformed service within forty-eight hours of notification, or other 
circumstances that the Office of the Assistant Secretary of Defense for Reserve Affairs may 
determine are impossible or unreasonable are sufficient justification for not providing advance 
notice of pending uniformed service to an employer. 

 
C. Military necessity. For the purpose of determining when providing advance notice of uniformed 

service is not required, a mission, operation, exercise or requirement that is classified, or a pending 
or ongoing mission, operation, exercise or requirement that may be compromised or otherwise 
adversely affected by public knowledge is sufficient justification for not providing advance notice to 
an employer. 



Page 2 of 9 

 
D. Uniformed service. Performance of duty on a voluntary or involuntary basis in the Armed Forces, 

the Army National Guard and the Air National Guard, the commissioned corps of the Public Health 
Service, and any other category of persons designated by the President in time of war or national 
emergency , when engaged in active duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, 
inactive duty training, full-time National Guard duty, a period for which a person is absent from a 
position of employment for the purpose of an examination to determine the fitness of the person to 
perform such duty, and funeral honors duty performed by members of a Reserve component.  

 
IV. PROCEDURES 

All employees requesting military or Civil Air Patrol leave, whether full or part-time, shall complete the 
Military Leave Notification form (Exhibit 1). This form shall be completed prior to said leave or the 
employee will be considered on an unpaid leave, unless precluded by military necessity. 
 
Any regular, full-time employee who, by reason of membership in the United States Military Reserve is 
ordered by the appropriate authorities to attend a training or encampment under the supervision of the 
United States Armed Forces or by reason of membership in the National Guard is required by the 
authority thereof to do so, shall be granted a leave of absence from their position without loss of pay 
for a period not to exceed two consecutive calendar weeks in any calendar year. The City will pay such 
an employee for time lost in the amount equaling the difference, if any, between the military pay and 
their normal City pay. 

 
For a regular, full-time employee to receive the difference between the military pay and their normal 
City pay, the employee must complete the Military Leave Notification form prior to said leave unless 
precluded by military necessity. Upon return from said leave, the employee shall submit to the City the 
pay records from the military substantiating the pay they received during that time. For employees not 
contributing towards the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), the City shall then pay the difference in 
the two rates of pay, and contribute the full amount of the costs of the employee’s portion of the 
Wisconsin Retirement Fund, but not to exceed the employee contribution rates for the period of the 
leave. For employees who are contributing towards the WRS, the state provides that the employee is 
responsible for making the WRS employee required contributions. Upon returning from unpaid military 
leave, the employee has the choice whether to make up all, some or none of the total WRS employee 
required contributions dating to the employee’s military leave of absence (Exhibits 2 & 3). 

 
A. To preserve their rights under the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act 

(USERRA), employees shall provide advance written or verbal notice to the City, unless precluded 
by military necessity or otherwise unreasonable or impossible. Reserve component members should 
provide notice at least 30 days in advance when it is feasible to do so. This notice requirement can 
be met by providing the City a copy of the unit annual training schedule and completing the Military 
Leave Notification form. 

 
B. Upon completion of service, in order to be re-employed by the City: 

1. The employee’s cumulative length of absences does not exceed 5 years;  
2. The employee reports to, or submits an application for reemployment to, the Human Resources 

Department within the specified period based on duration of services, as described in section F; 
and,  

3. The person's character of service was not disqualifying as described in sections C. 4 and C. 5 
below. 

 
C. The City is not required to reemploy a person if:  

1. The employment with the City was for a brief, non-recurrent period and there was no 
reasonable expectation that the employment would continue indefinitely or for a significant 
period.  



Page 3 of 9 

2. The City's circumstances have so changed as to make reemployment impossible or 
unreasonable.  

3. The reemployment imposes an undue hardship on the City in the case of an individual who:  
a) Has incurred a service connected disability; or,  
b) Is not qualified for the escalator position or the position last held and cannot become 

qualified for any other position of lesser status and pay after a reasonable effort by the City 
to qualify the person for such positions.  

4. The Service member or former Service member was separated from a uniformed service with a 
dishonorable or bad conduct discharge, or separated from a uniformed service under other than 
honorable conditions.  

5. An officer dismissed from any armed force or dropped from the rolls of any armed force as 
prescribed under 10 U.S.C. 1161.  

6. The cumulative length of service exceeds five years and no portion of the cumulative five years 
of uniformed service falls within the exceptions described in section E. 

 
D. The City shall not deny initial employment, reemployment, retention in employment, promotion, or 

any employment benefit on the basis of membership, an application for membership, performance 
of service or an obligation for service in the uniformed services. No person, including a non-Service 
member, shall be subject to employment discrimination or any adverse employment action because 
they have taken an action to enforce a protection afforded a Service member, has testified or made 
a statement in or in connection with any proceeding concerning employment and reemployment 
rights of a Service member, has assisted or participated in an investigation, or has otherwise 
exercised any right provided by USERRA.  

 
E. In order to retain reemployment rights and benefits provided by this policy and federal law, the 

cumulative length of absences from the City cannot exceed 5 years. Not counted toward this limit 
is:  
1. Service beyond 5 years if required to complete an initial service obligation;  
2. Service during which an individual was unable to obtain release orders before the expiration of 

the 5-year cumulative service limit through no fault of their own;  
3. Required training for Reservists and National Guard members;  
4. Involuntary order, call to active duty or retention on active duty;  
5. Ordered to or retained on active duty during a war or national emergency declared by the 

President or Congress;  
6. Ordered to active duty in support of an operational mission for which personnel have been 

involuntarily called to active duty;  
7. Performing service in support of a critical mission or requirement as determined by the 

Secretary concerned;  
8. Performing service in the National Guard when ordered to active duty by the President to 

suppress an insurrection, repel an invasion or execute the laws of the United States; and,  
9. Voluntary recall to active duty of retired regular Coast Guard officers or retired enlisted Coast 

Guard members. 
 

F. Applications For Reemployment: 
 

1. For service of 30 days or less or for an absence for an examination to determine the individual's 
fitness to perform uniformed service, the Service member or applicant must report to work no 
later than the beginning of the first full regularly scheduled work period on the next calendar 
day following completion of service or the examination, after allowing for an eight-hour rest 
period following safe transportation home from the military duty location.  

2. For service of 31 days or more but less than 181 days, the Service member must submit an 
application for reemployment no later than 14 days after completion of service or by the next 



Page 4 of 9 

full calendar day when submitting an application within the 14-day limit was impossible or 
unreasonable through no fault of the Service member.  

3. For service of 181 days or more, the Service member must submit an application for 
reemployment no later than 90 days after completion of service.  

4. If hospitalized or convalescing from an illness or injury incurred or aggravated during service, 
the Service member must, at the end of the period necessary for recovery, follow the same 
procedures, based on length of service, as described in sections F. 1 through F. 3 above. The 
period of hospitalization or convalescence may not normally exceed 2 years.  

5. Anyone who fails to report or apply for reemployment within the specified period shall not 
automatically forfeit entitlement to reemployment rights and benefits, but is subject to the rules 
of conduct, established policies, general practices of the employer pertaining to explanations 
and discipline because of an absence from scheduled work.  

 
G. If service is for 31 days or more, a Service member must provide documentation, upon request, 

that establishes:  
1. Application to return to work within the prescribed time period;  
2. Has not exceeded the 5-year cumulative service limit; and  
3. Reemployment rights were not terminated because of character of service as described in 

paragraphs C. 4 and C. 5 of this policy. 
 
Failure to provide documentation cannot serve as a basis for denying reemployment to the Service 
member, former Service member, or applicant if documentation does not exist or is not readily 
available at the time of the City's request. However, if after reemployment documentation becomes 
available that establishes that the Service member or former Service member does not meet one or 
more of the requirements contained in this policy, the City may immediately terminate the 
employment.  

 
H. Position To Which Entitled Upon Reemployment 

1. Reemployment position for service of 90 days or less:  
a) The position the person would have attained if continuously employed (the "escalator" 

position) and if qualified to perform the duties or can become qualified after reasonable 
efforts by the City; or,  

b) The position in which the person was employed when they departed for uniformed service, 
but only if the person is not qualified to perform the duties of the escalator position, despite 
the City's reasonable efforts to qualify the person for the escalator position.  

2. Reemployment position for service of 91 days or more:  
a) The escalator position or a position of like seniority, status and pay, the duties of which the 

person is qualified to perform or can become qualified after reasonable efforts by the City; 
or,  

b) The position in which the person was employed when they departed for uniformed service 
or a position of like seniority, status and pay, the duties of which the person is qualified to 
perform, but only if the person is not qualified to perform the duties of the escalator 
position after the City has made a reasonable effort to qualify the person for the escalator 
position.  

3. If a person cannot become qualified, after reasonable efforts by the City to qualify the person, 
for either the escalator position or the position formerly occupied by the employee as provided 
in this section, for any reason (other than disability), the person must be employed in any other 
position of lesser status and pay that the person is qualified to perform, with full seniority.  

 
I. If a person who is disabled because of service cannot (after reasonable efforts by the City to 

accommodate the disability) be employed in the escalator position, they must be reemployed:  



Page 5 of 9 

1. In any other position that is equivalent to the escalator position in terms of seniority, status, 
and pay that the person is qualified or can become qualified to perform with reasonable efforts 
by the City; or,  

2. In a position, consistent with the person's disability, that is the nearest approximation to the 
escalator or equivalent position in terms of seniority, status and pay.  

 
J. A person who is reemployed under USERRA is entitled to the seniority and other rights and benefits 

determined by seniority that the person had upon commencing uniformed service and any 
additional seniority and rights and benefits they would have attained if continuously employed. A 
person who is absent by reason of uniformed service shall be deemed to be on leave of absence 
from the City and is entitled to such other rights and benefits not determined by seniority as 
generally provided by the City to employees having similar seniority, status and pay who are also 
on leave of absence, as provided under the contract or policy in effect during the Service member's 
absence because of uniformed service, except vacation. Employees who are on an unpaid leave of 
absence for purposes of military leave shall not have their vacation prorated upon their return. 
However such employees shall not be entitled to more than one year of benefits upon their return. 
The individual may be required to pay the employee cost, if any, of any funded benefit to the same 
extent that other employees on leave of absence are required to pay.  

 
K. If, after being advised by the City of the specific rights and benefits to be lost, a Service member, 

former Service member or applicant of uniformed service knowingly provides written notice of 
intent not to seek reemployment after completion of uniformed service, they are no longer entitled 
to any non-seniority based rights and benefits. This includes all non-seniority based rights and 
benefits provided under any contract, plan, agreement or policy in effect at the time of entry into 
uniformed service or established while performing such service and which are generally provided by 
the employer to employees having similar seniority, status and pay who are on leave of absence.  

 
L. A person who is reemployed following uniformed service cannot be discharged from employment, 

except for cause, within 1 year after the date of reemployment if that person's service was 181 
days or more; or within 180 days after the date of reemployment if such service was 31 days or 
more but less than 181 days.  

 
M. During any period of uniformed service, a person may, upon request, use any vacation, PTO, or 

similar leave with pay accrued before the commencement of that period of service.  
 

N. The City will allow the Service member to elect to continue personal health insurance coverage, and 
coverage for the Service member’s dependents under the following circumstances:  
1. The maximum period of coverage of a person and the person's dependents under such an 

election shall be the lesser of:  
a) The 24 month period beginning on the date on which the person's absence begins; or  
b) The day after the date on which the person was required to apply for or return to a position 

of employment as specified in this policy, and fails to do so.  
2. A person who elects to continue health plan coverage may be required to pay up to 102 percent 

of the full premium under the plan, except that a person on active duty for 30 days or less 
cannot be required to pay more than the employee's share, if any, for the coverage.  

3. An exclusion or waiting period may not be imposed in connection with the reinstatement of 
coverage upon reemployment if one would not have been imposed had coverage not been 
terminated because of service. However, an exclusion or waiting period may be imposed for 
coverage of any illness or injury determined by the Secretary of Veterans’ Affairs to have been 
incurred in or aggravated during, the performance of uniformed service.  

 
O. A person reemployed after uniformed service shall be treated as if no break in service occurred, 

with the City maintaining the employee's pension benefit plan. Each period of uniformed service, 



Page 6 of 9 

upon reemployment, shall be deemed to constitute service with the City for the purpose of 
determining the non-forfeitability of accrued benefits and accrual of benefits. The City is liable for 
funding any obligation attributable to the employer of the employee's pension benefit plan that 
would have been paid to the plan on behalf of that employee but for their absence during a period 
of uniformed service. Upon reemployment, a person has three times the period of military service, 
but not to exceed five years after reemployment, within which to contribute the amount they would 
have contributed to the pension benefit plan if they had not been absent for uniformed service. An 
employee is entitled to accrued benefits of the pension plan that are contingent on the making of 
or are derived from, employee contributions or elective deferrals only to the extent the person 
makes payment to the plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 9 

 

Exhibit 1  

MILITARY LEAVE NOTIFICATION FORM 
 
Employee: ________________________________________ Department: _________________________  
 
The following serves as notification that I will be absent related to my duty in the National Guard/U.S. 
Reserve: 
 
Date(s) of Leave:           (attach copy of your orders). 
Employees should contact the City Benefits Coordinator at (920) 832-6455 to discuss benefit 
impacts for leaves that extend beyond 30 days, which may result in proration of future benefits. 
 

I choose to take paid leave time off to the extent such paid leave is available and will keep my pay 
from the military. (i.e., vacation, floating holiday, comp time, PTO) 

 
I choose to take an unpaid leave of absence and keep my military pay. 

 
I choose to take regular pay to the extent such paid leave is available pursuant to the Military Leave 
policy or the applicable collective bargaining agreement and will turn in my pay stubs from the military.  

 

Following provisions apply to all employees. 
 

The state provides that the employee is responsible for making Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) employee 
required contributions. Upon returning from unpaid military leave, the employee has the choice whether to 
make up all, some or none of the total WRS employee required contributions dating to the employee’s military 
leave of absence.  
 
For leaves more than 31 days: Upon return from military leave, I will complete Section A: Employee 
Information of the ETF USERRA Certification (ET-4560) and hand in to my supervisor along with a copy of my 
DD-214 or a copy of my military orders or any other military issued paperwork reflecting that my service was 
other than disqualifying under 38 U.S.C. 4304. (A copy of the ETF form is attached to this form.)  
 
USERRA allows for employee required contributions to WRS to be made beginning with the date of 
reemployment and ending on the earlier of: (1) three times the period of military service, or (2) five years. 
This provision is for employees not covered by a collective bargaining agreement under which the employer 
has agreed to pay the total WRS employee required contributions. 
 

I elected unpaid military leave. My leave is less than 31 days, and I will not receive a DD-214. Upon my 
return I would like to make up ______% of the WRS employee required contributions. I understand that I 
have the option of paying back all, some or none of the WRS employee-required contributions dating to the 
military leave. I understand the employer is only required to make employer required contributions to match 
the contributions made by the employee.  
 
Signatures 

 
Employee: _______________________________________ Date: ________________ 
 
Supervisor: _______________________________________ Date: ________________  
 
HR Generalist: _______________________________________ Date: ________________  
 
cc: Payroll Coordinator (including ETF form), Benefits Coordinator, Supervisor 



Page 8 of 9 

 

Exhibit 2 

 
  



Page 9 of 9 

 

Exhibit 3 
 

 
 



HR Generalist Position Dept. Date of Vacancy Open Date # of Openings Status

Operator I - Parking DPW 08/15/24 07/12/24 1
Background and references pending on top 

candidate. 

Master Mechanic -Valley Transit VT 06/08/24 06/12/24 1 Application deadline 9/29/24. 

Waste Water Operator Utilities
5/25/2024 & 

6/17/2024
05/10/24 2

Application deadline 10/6/24.

Customer Service Specialist DPW 10/12/24 09/03/24 1 Reviewing applications. 

Police Officer Police 12/01/23 N/A 5+Elig.

Application deadline: open. 

Physical fitness testing: 9/25/24.

PFC Interviews: 9/23/24. 

Conditional offer extended ot 1 candidate. 

Background pending on 1 candidate. 

Firefighter Fire NA 09/17/24 Elig. Application deadline: 11/10/24. 

Library Page Clerk - Regular Part-Time Library 08/19/24 08/02/24 1 Job offer accepted, start date: 9/23/24.

Library Clerk (Sub) Library NA 08/07/24 1 Job offer accepted, start date: 9/22/24. 

Communication Specialist Police 09/04/24 08/22/24 1 Panel Interviews: 9/19/24. 

Library Page Library 07/27/24 08/19/24 3
Background and references pending on 3 

candidates. 

Library Assistant - Materials Management 

(Acquisitions)
Library 08/10/24 09/16/24 1 Application deadline: 9/29/24.0

Deputy Director Finance Finance 09/06/24 08/09/24 1 Determining next steps. 

Total Positions Open: 18 9

On Hold

HR Generalist Position Dept. Date of Vacancy

# of 

Openings

Morgan Library Clerk - Regular Part-Time Library 07/01/22 1

Jessie 
Transit Maintenance 

Operations Supervisor VT
03/25/23 1

Position on hold.

Total On Hold 2

Updates thru 09/18/24

Total Eligibility Lists:

Internal transfer. Position on hold.

Status

Jessie 

Morgan


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_Minutes 8.28.24
	0002_1_19-0536 - Alderperson Salary Adjustment Deadlines Update Fall 2024 (ZB CRB) 09-06-2024.pdf
	0002_2_Elected Alderperson Salary History
	0002_3_Alderperson Comp 2024 Comparable
	0004_1_Military Leave Policy
	0005_1_RSR 09.18.24

